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BIDDER’s CONFERENCE – MINUTES OF MEETING  
ITB/UNDP/SMILE/124777/001/2021 

 

 

Assignment Name:  
Provision of Temperature Data Loggers to Improve Efficiency of Vaccination Supply Chain in 

Indonesia 

 

Date and Time:  

21st January 2021 by Zoom Online Meeting 

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772

332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.prat

ama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace5

4319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMD

AiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcB

zcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0   

Meeting ID: 837 7233 2779 

Passcode: 479389 

 

Closing Date: 
Please refer to the e-tendering system with event ID 0000008312. 
 

 

TO ALL INTERESTED BIDDERS 

 

No. Introduction and Guidance 

Information Bid Conference was opened with following agenda: 
1. Explanation on ITB tender document – administrative issue (closing date, 

submission & method, delivery place for submitting offer, contract award, etc.). 
2. Explanation on Returnable Bidding Forms/Checklist 
3. Explanation on Annex I - Specifications/Description Of Requirement 
4. Q & A (going through all sessions) 
 
*Bidders were encouraged to carefully read the ITB document before preparing the 
offer and to check regularly UNDP E-tendering & UNDP website for any 
update/amendment to this tender document 

 
Q&A session is incorporated into the below minutes 

 

1. Q 
Can the bidder which not selected or awarded the contract request for debrief 
meeting on how the proposal performs? 

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fundp.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83772332779%3Fpwd%3DU2JkNHg5RjBpYmxnbVZVVmovZ1E4UT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7Carmada.pratama%40undp.org%7C5a71ce853d7e426dad4108d8b8c0c65d%7Cb3e5db5e2944483799f57488ace54319%7C0%7C0%7C637462485389839203%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=Q%2FD6DZDBacpjEVcBzcfalNx4IUayBGE8DWk6suXpCrc%3D&amp;reserved=0
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A 
Yes, it is possible with certain regulations, meaning that the unsuccessful bidder may 
conduct debrief meeting with UNDP and will discuss on the tender evaluation as 
comprehensive possible by not comparing to other bidders’ proposal 

2. 
Q Will the award publish widely? 

A Yes, the award will be published in UNDP webistes, UNGM and Procurement Notice. 

3. 
Q 

If there is several requirements or documents cannot be submitted but the rest can 
be submitted, will UNDP reject the bid? 

A 
Yes, UNDP will reject the bid even if only 1 or 2 requirements or documents cannot 
be submitted which means it is not complied with UNDP requirement. 

4. 

Q 
If the process of bidding, awarding, and engaging is less thank the bid validity period, 
why does bid validity has to be 90 days? 

A 

The bid validity is an estimation period for the whole procurement process. In order 
to guarantee the process, including bid security, bid validity is needed. Should the 
whole processes cover less than 90 days, it doesn’t have correlation on the timeline 
for the selected bidder to deliver the services/goods. 

5. 
Q Is there any template form UNDP that bidder has to comply on bid security? 

A Yes, there is a format from UNDP that bidder has to comply. 

6. 
Q Is there any bank preference for this bid security? 

A 
There is no bank preference for bid security, but the bank must be registered legally 
by the government for its operations. 

7. 

Q 
For the integration to SMILE, will it be done by one way (only from selected vendor’s 
back end to SMILE) or two ways (back and forth from/to selected vendor’s back end 
to/from SMILE)? 

A 

The project needs both, one way and two ways communication. 
For one way meaning that the project must be able to get the data from the device 
and for two way meaning that we also can-do adjustment or change or set up on the 
thresholds for the device, so we are able to send some commands to the device from 
SMILE backend. 

8. 
Q 

 For the GPS for cold chain, will be installed indoor or outdoor? How does the 
connection relate to the instalment? 

A 
The device will be put within the building and it can be read by SMILE system for one 
time or several time in one year. 

9. 
Q 

For the certified NIST and ILAC, does it have to traceable or the bidder can use 
manufacture calibration only? 

A 
Regarding to this specification, the bidder may proceed with manufacture calibration 
only. 

10. 
Q 

For alarm sent through SMS, will the notification be sent to only one number or many 
numbers for each device? 

A 
Basically, we need selected bidder to be able to send SMS notifications to 2 or 3 
numbers.  

11. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #3, should the device using USB or the selected bidder can 
use another system like cloud so the data can be sent to selected bidder’s cloud 
storage? 

A 

We need the device using USB as a backup mechanism in case there is a problem 
with connection or cloud, SMILE can still get/download the data from the device. The 
device should be able to keep the data in USB at least 30 days. The other way to get 
data directly from the device can be from bluetooth but still, the data must be 
secured in the device at least 30 days from the current date. 

12. 
Q Is the temperature indicator must be displayed on the device or in application? 

A 
SMILE project requires the temperature indicator must be displayed on the device 
and in application or from the backend or from Kemenkes or Dinkes or SMILE. 
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13. 
Q 

Related to scope of work #8, is it possible that selected bidder calibrates under 
KAHN standard, not by NIST or ILAC standard calibration? 

A Yes, bidder may submit using KAHN standard calibration 

14. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #10, please elaborate more on user programable sample 
rate and alarm limits? 

A 
We require the application to be able to send direct notification such alarm and the 
application is adjustable to set limit of temperature because there might be changes 
on certain time period for the temperature limit for the cold chain.  

15. 
Q 

Related to scope of work #11, since the device will be put in the cold chain, will the 
GPS be distributed along with the distributed cold chain? Or the GPS only be placed 
in specified location in PUSKESMAS? 

A 
The chillers of the cold chains are already installed in PUSKESMAS so it doesn’t need 
to be tracked, so the GPS will be installed in PUSKESMAS.  

16. 
Q 

Related to scope of work #12, is it really required that onboard software generates 
PDF & CSV Report download for last 30 days through USB port or is it possible to 
send the data to the cloud? 

A 
We need the PDF and CSV report can be downloaded on site in case there’s problem 
on the connection or the cloud. 

17. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #14, does UNDP already have the dashboard or the selected 
bidder has to design it? 

A 
Yes, the bidder may propose another dashboard design but at least SMILE project 
needs minimum features that we can see such device set up provisioning or battery 
indicator, temperature or any other important related indicators. 

18. 
Q 

Related to scope of work #16, is the replacement lead day 7 calendar days or 7 
working days? 

A It is 7 calendar days. 

19. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #17, is UNDP open for another form of technology to be 
used apart from GPRS or internet? 

A 

Yes, we are open for any other protocol ZP or any other. The bidders are allowed to 
propose any other technologies other than SMS but the data subscription must be 
included in the financial proposal. Should any other devices be important for 
delivering it, kindly please add into the proposal.  

20. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #19, does it mean that the service including dismantling 
and collecting the devices from the locations upon service completion? 

A 
Yes, the service includes dismantling and collecting the device from the locations 
upon service completion. Thus, this part should be your consideration in submitting 
the proposal. 

21. 

Q 
Related to scope of work #14, kindly please provide the details of the minimum 
features or indicator for a proposed dashboard. 

A 

Minimum Feature for Dashboard Web Application 
• Dashboard showing number of connected and active devices & their 

respective temperature 
• Canvas Map to display device position 
• User Provisioning 
• Device Provisioning & Test Status Device 
• Temperature Logs 
• Setting Rule 

Authentication 

22. 
Q 

Related to the installation and delivery/shipment, does it mean that the selected 
bidder has to install in PUSKESMAS or only in capital point of the city or district? 

A 
Yes, the selected bidder must install until PUSKEMAS and the selected bidder should 
assure that the devices are connected to the system and can be read by the system. 
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23. 
Q 

Related after sales warranty, does it mean that it’s applied for any replacement 
should be done until PUSKESMAS, so not only until capital point of the city or 
district? 

A Yes, it’s applied until PUSKESMAS where the devices are installed. 

24. 
Q Is there any precise location for the PUSKESMAS? 

A 
No, there is no any specified locations for PUSKESMAS. We allow bidder to calculate 
from the capital point of the city or district. 

25. 
Q 

Should be any changes on the list of PUSKESMAS in cities or district, will it affect the 
latest date of delivery/due date? 

A If there is any change of PUSKESMAS, it will be within the cities or the district. 

26. 

Q 
Regarding to the roadmap as stated in tender document that there will be provision 
until 10,000 devices in 2024, is it subject to the performance of this 2,400 provision 
in 2021 or it is firm that it provision will be until 10,000 devices in 2024? 

A 
It is subject to the budget availability and request from MoH but the roadmap 
stated so. 

27. 

A 
Should the bidder would like to bid in Joint Venture (JV) form, do we need stated in 
proposal?  

Q 

It is confirmed that Joint Venture (JV) form is allowed, and it should be specified in 
the related forms. The forms are available in the eTendering or Prourement Notice or 
in UNGM. 
Other things to emphasize are please carefully submit the requested documents for 
JV forms because the bidders in JVs form should submit for both bidders. 

28. 
A 

Relating to the previous experiences as required, is it only required previous 
experiences with IOT or any other experience can be counted? 

Q 
Based on requirement specified in ToR part of the tender document, we require 
previous experiences in any IOT area.  

29. 

Q Any maximum size of files can be uploaded in eTendering? 

A 

Our eTendering system can accept maximum capacity files at 50 mb but it is subject 
to bidder’s connection. Our recommendations for bidders are to upload the 
documents partially should the capacity are big and please set the files name 
subsequently, not using special characters, and not exceeding 10 characters. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jakarta, 25th January 2021 
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Queries and Answer 
ITB/UNDP/SMILE/124777/001/2021 

 

 

Assignment Name:  
Provision of Temperature Data Loggers to Improve Efficiency of Vaccination Supply Chain in 

Indonesia 

 

 
Q&A I 

Post Bid-Conference 
 

1. 

Q What should we prepare (technically & non-technically)? 

A 
Generally, this platform is a separated application with environment, database, 
and independent to SMILE. For the communication, we require that can be done by 
API with POST or GET.  

2. 

Q Is there any minimum requirement to be integrated with the SMILE system 

A 

To be able to communicate during implementation a standard API / data / token 
will be made.  
For the data which will be sent to SMILE, at least: 
• Device ID with is location and status. 
• Latest temperature. 

3. 
Q 

During integration process, kindly confirm that the sensor will apply API with one 
way or two ways? 

A 
It is two ways, only during the remote device setting process for one thing or 
another, such as setting data transmission intervals, etc. 

4. 
Q 

Kindly confirm whether user can configure sample frequency and alarm for all 
devices? 

A Yes, user can configure sample frequency and alarm for all devices. 

5. 
Q 

Kindly confirm whether the selected bidder only has to ship the goods by logistic 
services and the installation is carried out independently, guided by XL technical 
online? 

A 
No, the goods must be installed by the selected bidder and must be proven legible 
by the SMILE system to be declared the installation work is complete 

6. 
Q Will the tender winner be provided with the coordinates of the location sent? 

A 
No. 
Later, these coordinates will be collected during installation by the vendor 

7. 
Q 

Kindly confirm that SMILE require 2 major function which are temperature and 
GPS? Any other thing? 

A We need 2 major functions which are temperature and GPS 

8. 
Q How much data and SMS quota are required per device? 

A 
Bidder may calculate that for temperature data has to be sent in 15 minutes 
intervals for 24 hours, 7 days a week and 9 months of service for 2,400 devices 

9. 
Q How much is the budget for this provision? 

A 
For this query, we are unable to provide the information. We are looking forward 
bidders’ best offer. 
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10. 

A 
If there are changes on the bank guarantee template from the bidders’ bank, is it 
acceptable? 

Q 
Please consult with UNDP Indonesia Procurement Unit should any changes has to 
be done by bidders. If the changes are major based on the assessment of UNDP 
Procurement Unit, we will advise directly and accordingly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jakarta, 27th January 2021 
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Queries and Answer 
ITB/UNDP/SMILE/124777/001/2021 

 

 

Assignment Name:  
Provision of Temperature Data Loggers to Improve Efficiency of Vaccination Supply Chain in 

Indonesia 

 

 
Q&A II 

Post Bid-Conference 
 

1. 
Q 

Since there are big numbers of data logger demand all over the world, could the 
selected bidder do the delivery of the devices in stages? 

A 
We understand the difficulties and we decided to extend into 15 May 2021 for the 
delivery.  

2. 

Q 
Is there any minimum percentage bids bond from sum of amount project that bank 
guarantee? 

A 

Please refer to tender document page 17 on point 6. 
Required in the amount of USD 17,000. 
Acceptable Forms of Bid Security: 
- Bank Guarantee (See Section 8 for template) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jakarta, 28th January 2021 


